

Infor LN Manufacturing User Guide for Use-up and Alternative Materials

Copyright © 2025 Infor

Important Notices

The material contained in this publication (including any supplementary information) constitutes and contains confidential and proprietary information of Infor.

By gaining access to the attached, you acknowledge and agree that the material (including any modification, translation or adaptation of the material) and all copyright, trade secrets and all other right, title and interest therein, are the sole property of Infor and that you shall not gain right, title or interest in the material (including any modification, translation or adaptation of the material) by virtue of your review thereof other than the non-exclusive right to use the material solely in connection with and the furtherance of your license and use of software made available to your company from Infor pursuant to a separate agreement, the terms of which separate agreement shall govern your use of this material and all supplemental related materials ("Purpose").

In addition, by accessing the enclosed material, you acknowledge and agree that you are required to maintain such material in strict confidence and that your use of such material is limited to the Purpose described above. Although Infor has taken due care to ensure that the material included in this publication is accurate and complete, Infor cannot warrant that the information contained in this publication is complete, does not contain typographical or other errors, or will meet your specific requirements. As such, Infor does not assume and hereby disclaims all liability, consequential or otherwise, for any loss or damage to any person or entity which is caused by or relates to errors or omissions in this publication (including any supplementary information), whether such errors or omissions result from negligence, accident or any other cause.

Without limitation, U.S. export control laws and other applicable export and import laws govern your use of this material and you will neither export or re-export, directly or indirectly, this material nor any related materials or supplemental information in violation of such laws, or use such materials for any purpose prohibited by such laws.

Trademark Acknowledgements

The word and design marks set forth herein are trademarks and/or registered trademarks of Infor and/or related affiliates and subsidiaries. All rights reserved. All other company, product, trade or service names referenced may be registered trademarks or trademarks of their respective owners.

Publication Information

Document code	tialternatmatug (U9883)		
Release	10.7 (10.7)		
Publication date	June 2, 2025		

Table of Contents

About this document

Index

Chapter 1 Introduction Use-up and Alternative Materials	7
Overview of use-up materials and alternative materials	7
Alternative materials in JSBOMs	7
Using up remaining stock of outdated items	9
Restrictions	9
Checks for use-up materials	10
To use revisions and lot control instead of use-up materials	10
Chapter 2 Setup for Use-up and Alternative Materials	11
Replacing outdated materials and designating use-up materials in JSBOMs	11
Chapter 3 Use-up and Alternative Materials	13
Searching for alternative materials	13
Checking Use-up Material Definitions	15
Chapter 4 Planning	17
Use-up materials and alternative materials in Enterprise Planning	17
Planning with alternative materials	17
Alternative material horizon	18
Allow multiple materials	18
Phase numbers	18
Checks on the execution level	19
Appendix A Glossary	21

About this document

This document explains material management during production. When materials are unavailable in necessary quantities, they are substituted with <u>alternative materials</u>. If materials are still in stock, but will no longer be replenished, you can define options for <u>use-up</u> of the remaining stock.

How to read this document

Comments?

We continually review and improve our documentation. Any remarks/requests for information concerning this document or topic are appreciated. Please e-mail your comments to documentation@infor.com.

In your e-mail, refer to the document number and title. More specific information will enable us to process feedback efficiently.

Contacting Infor

If you have questions about Infor products, go to Infor Concierge at https://concierge.infor.com/ and create a support incident.

If we update this document after the product release, we will post the new version on the Infor Support Portal. To access documentation, select **Search Browse Documentation**. We recommend that you check this portal periodically for updated documentation.

If you have comments about Infor documentation, contact documentation@infor.com.

Overview of use-up materials and alternative materials

Note

To enable this functionality select the **Alternative Materials** and **Use Up Material** check boxes in the Implemented Software Components (tccom0100s000) session.

You can use the use-up functionality to ensure that material, used in pervious revisions of the <u>end item</u>, is used up completely before new material is utilized. This prevents a buildup of inventory that may become obsolete.

You can use <u>alternative materials</u> to handle shortage problems during production, and to reduce cost. BOM materials are often small parts that are ordered in large quantities, for which several alternatives are available. In case of shortage, the material specified as preferred in the <u>bill of material (BOM)</u> as is ordered. If the material cannot be ordered in time to fulfill the requirement an alternative material is chosen.

Alternative materials in JSBOMs

Some <u>items</u> are interchangeable even when these are purchased from various vendors. You can use any of these items as material in a job shop bill of material (JSBOM). If a shortage of a standard material is expected to delay a <u>production order</u>, LN can automatically select one of the alternative materials. You can define up to nine <u>alternative materials</u> for any material in a JSBOM.

The use of alternative materials has the following advantages:

- LN can handle material shortages for some items without user intervention.
- The use of alternative items can reduce the average inventory level.

Note

- If <u>multisite</u> functionality is active, standard and alterative materials are managed for a specific <u>planning cluster</u>.
- Alternative materials apply for <u>production orders</u> only, not for subcontracted <u>purchase order</u>.
- You must distinguish the alternative materials, described in this topic, from the <u>alternative</u> items that you define in the Alternative Items (tcibd0505m000) session.
- The standard cost calculation does not take alternative materials into consideration. Calculations are done based on the cost of the material specified in the JSBOM.

Restrictions

- Alternative materials have the same net quantity as the standard material.
- Alternative materials have exactly the same values of characteristics such as the <u>scrap</u> and <u>yield</u> as the standard material.
- Use-up materials and alternative materials have the same material-routing relationships as the standard item.
- If a component on a <u>BOM line</u> is a standard item, that is, an item with an empty project <u>segment</u>, the associated alternative materials must also be standard components.
- If a component on a <u>BOM line</u> is a <u>project item</u>, that is, an item with a filled project segment, the associated alternative materials' project segments must be either:
 - Filled with the same project as the main item's project segment.
 - Empty (the alternative is a standard item)
- If a component on a BOM line is a <u>phantom</u>, you cannot define alternative material for that component.

Priority of an alternative material

You can specify the priority of each alternative material. If the standard material is out of stock, LN first tries the highest-priority alternative. If that material is also unavailable, LN tries the alternative that has the next priority.

■ To distribute a material requirement over multiple items

If, on a <u>BOM line</u> in the Job Shop List of Materials (tibom3610m000) session, the **Allow Multiple Items** check box is selected, LN can split a material requirement over multiple alternative materials or partly fulfilled by the materials.

Example: If ten pieces are needed and only six pieces of the requested material are available, first the six pieces of the original are used then four pieces of the alternative to fill the full quota.

Checks for alternative materials

At one or more of the following points in a production order's life cycle, depending on parameter settings, LN can check whether an alternative material must be used:

- When you generate <u>planned production orders</u> in Enterprise Planning.
- When a <u>production order</u> is created in Job Shop Control.
- When you run the Generate Alternatives for Estimated Materials (ticst0216m000) session for existing production orders.

■ When you generate an <u>outbound advice</u> in Warehousing. For more details, refer to the *Searching for alternative materials (p. 13)* topic.

Using up remaining stock of outdated items

Often, new <u>items</u> are introduced that, make other items obsolete. The obsolete items are no longer deliverable or the items are no longer manufactured.

If an outdated item is used as material in a job shop bill of material, you must replace the material by a replacement item with the same specifications.

If a quantity of outdated material remains in stock, it must be used up first.

Note

- The value of the **Last allowed Order Date** field in the Item Ordering (tcibd2100m000) session determines when LN stops reordering the use-up material.
- To set the system up to use up the remaining quantity of the outdated item, you define that item as a <u>use-up material</u> in the JSBOM.
- If <u>multisite</u> is active, all warehouses containing both the standard and the alternative materials must be linked to the same <u>planning cluster</u>.

Restrictions

- Use-up materials have the same net quantity as the standard material.
- Use-up materials have exactly the same values of characteristics such as the scrap and yield as the standard material.
- Use-up materials have the same material-routing relationships as the standard item.
- If a component on a <u>BOM line</u> is a standard item, that is, an item with an empty project <u>segment</u>, the associated use-up must also be standard components.
- If a component on a <u>BOM line</u> is a <u>project item</u>, that is, an item with a filled project segment, the associated use-up project segments must be either:
 - Filled with the same project as the main item's project segment
 - Empty (the alternative is a standard item)
- If a component on a BOM line is a <u>phantom</u>, you cannot define a use-up material for that component.

Checks for use-up materials

At any of the following moments, depending on parameter settings, LN can check whether you must use any use-up material:

- When you generate planned production orders in the Enterprise Planning package.
- When the system generates a <u>production order</u> in the Job Shop Control module, or if you release a production order.
- When you generate an <u>outbound advice</u> in the Warehousing package.

To use revisions and lot control instead of use-up materials

If you use the Engineering Data Management module to control changes in a job shop bill of material and you link subsequent <u>revisions</u> to the same item code on a <u>BOM line</u>, you cannot apply the use-up functionality.

For that situation, you can apply <u>lot</u> control and use the **FIFO** outbound method. That outbound method ensures that you use up the outdated revision before you take the new revision.

Replacing outdated materials and designating use-up materials in JSBOMs

This topic describes how to replace an outdated material with a replacement material in a JS bill of material (BOM) and specify the outdated material as a <u>use-up material</u>.

If you use Engineering Data Management to control changes in a BOM, you this procedure does not apply.

To replace an outdated component, proceed as follows:

Step 1: Start the Where-Used BOM Component (tibom1512m000) session

Step 2: Insert BOM line

The BOM line must have the same BOM position number as the outdated component

Step 3: Specify the date for the switch

Enter the date when the switch must occur in the **Expiry Change Order** field for the outdated component.

Step 4: Specify the date for the new component to become effective

The date entered in the **Effective Change Order** field, must be the same as the one in the **Expiry Change Order** field.

If the outdated component is not used anymore in any BOM, you must set the item's last allowed order date in the Item - Ordering (tcibd2100m000) session. If the last allowed order date is specified by warehouse, you must use the Item Data by Warehouse (whwmd2510m000) session.

Setup for Use-up and Alternative Materials		

Searching for alternative materials

This topic describes how and when LN automatically takes an <u>alternative material</u> for a <u>production order</u> instead of a standard material.

Note

- To search for <u>alternative material</u> the **Alternative Materials** parameter in the Implemented Software Components (tccom0100s000) session must be selected.
- If <u>multisite</u> is activated, standard and alternative materials are planned and issued per <u>planning</u> <u>cluster</u>. A planning cluster contains one or more sites, for which an available-to-promise check will generate cumulative results.

■ How does LN perform the checks

LN performs the checks for alternative materials according to the following principles:

- Each alternative material has a priority.
- If the standard material is out of stock, LN first tries the highest-priority alternative. If that material is also unavailable, LN tries the alternative that has the next priority, and so on.

Material availability

LN uses the following methods to determine if an alternative material is available on the required date:

- In the Enterprise Planning package
 - LN checks the material's quantity available-to-promise.
- In the Job Shop Control module
 - LN checks the material's time-phased economic stock.
- In the Warehousing package
 - LN checks the material's inventory on hand.

■ To distribute a material requirement over multiple materials

If, on a <u>BOM line</u> in the Job Shop List of Materials (tibom3610m000) session, the **Allow Multiple Items** check box is selected, LN can split a material over multiple alternative materials and the original material.

Multiple sessions have a check box named Allow Multiple Items:

- The **Allow Multiple Items** check box in the Production Bill of Material Lines (timfc3110m000) session is relevant for the generation of <u>planned orders</u> and production orders.
- The **Allow Multiple Items** check box in the Job Shop List of Materials (tibom3110m000) session for the generation of the outbound advices.

Example 2: Alternative materials

Material X has two alternatives: X1 and X2. The following table shows the inventory situation.

Item	Inventory	Priority
X	20	(standard)
X1	30	1
X2	1200	2

For a particular production order, you need a quantity of 100 pieces of X.

If multiple items are permitted, LN takes the following materials:

- 20 pieces of the standard material (X)
- 30 pieces of the first alternative material (X1), and
- 50 pieces of the second alternative material (X2)

If multiple items are *not* permitted, LN plans 100 pieces of alternative material X2, because none of the higher-priority materials are available in sufficient quantities.

When does LN perform the checks

At one or more of the following points during a production order's life cycle, LN can check the timely availability of standard materials and alternative materials:

- LN performs these checks when the <u>order-planning</u> procedure in Enterprise Planning generates <u>planned production orders</u>.
- If the **Automatic Select Alternatives** field in the Production Order Parameters (tisfc0500m000) session is set to **At Generation**, LN performs these checks when you create a <u>production order</u> or transfer a planned production order to the Job Shop Control module.
- If the **Automatic Select Alternatives** field in the Production Order Parameters (tisfc0500m000) session is set to **At Release**, LN performs these checks when you release a <u>production order</u>.

- You can perform these checks manually by using the Generate Alternatives for Estimated Materials (ticst0216m000) session.
 - You can use this session until the estimated materials are frozen. The estimated costs are frozen if the **Estimated Costs Are Frozen** check box in the Estimated Materials (ticst0101m000) session is selected.
- You can check again for material shortages and select alternative materials at the moment when you generate an <u>outbound advice</u> in the Warehousing package. To do so, you must select the **Handle Alternative Items** check box in the Process Outbound Advice (whinh4200m000) session, or select the **Handle Alternative Items** check box in the Generate Outbound Advice (whinh4201m000) session.

Repeated material checks

In general, if LN repeats the material availability check and a sufficient quantity of the currently selected material is available, LN does not change the material allocation, even if a higher-priority alternative material or the standard material has meanwhile become available. This policy avoids a nervous planning process that repeatedly changes the material allocations. However, if you want to make sure that the standard material or the highest-priority alternative material is used in a production order, you can use the Generate Alternatives for Estimated Materials (ticst0216m000) session to recheck all possible materials at any time. In that case, you must select the **Always Reconsider Alternatives** check box.

Example:

Suppose that the following events occur:

- During the creation of a production order, LN takes an alternative item because of an anticipated shortage for the standard material at the material allocation date.
- Before the allocation date for the material, you unexpectedly receive an inbound shipment of the standard material that is sufficient to fulfill the material requirement.
- Next, you generate the <u>outbound advice</u> in the Warehousing package. If the currently selected alternative material is available, LN does not change the material allocation and issues the alternative material from the warehouse to the job shop, regardless of the availability of the standard material.

To force LN to check again for the availability of the standard material, start the Generate Alternatives for Estimated Materials (ticst0216m000) session and select the **Always Reconsider Alternatives** check box.

Checking Use-up Material Definitions

In the Use Up and Alternative Materials (tibom0150m100) session you can checks the items, according to the following procedure:

1. LN identifies the <u>items</u> that are part of the item range you entered and that are defined as a material of a <u>bill of material (BOM)</u> in the Job Shop List of Materials (tibom3610m000) session.

- 2. From these items, LN selects the items for which the **Planner** field in the Item Ordering (tcibd2100m000) session names a planner that is part of the range of <u>shop floor planners</u> that you entered.
- 3. From these items, LN selects the items for which a date is recorded in the **Last Allowed Order**Date field. (These items have been phased out or will be phased out).
- **4.** For each of these items, LN checks if the last allowed order date is not before the date in the **Expiry Date** field of the <u>BOM line</u>.
- **5.** If the last allowed order date is before the expiry date, LN checks if the BOM line has any alternative materials.
- **6.** If the last allowed order date is before the expiry date and no alternative materials are present for a BOM line, the BOM line is specified in an error report.

Use-up materials and alternative materials in Enterprise Planning

This topic describes how Enterprise Planning handles <u>use-up materials</u> and <u>alternative materials</u>.

Note

- This functionality is available only if the **Alternative Materials** and **Use Up Material** check boxes in the Implemented Software Components (tccom0100s000) session is selected.
- If <u>multisite</u> is activated, all materials must come from warehouses linked to the same <u>site</u>, and belonging to the same <u>planning cluster</u>.
- A planning cluster can contain one or more <u>sites</u>, ATP checks are done for the whole planning cluster so that the results contain cumulative inventory results for all sites linked to the planning cluster
- In the Item Ordering (tcibd2100m000) session, you can view or maintain the last allowed order date and the safety stock by <u>site</u>.
- LN also checks for a <u>use-up material</u> that must be used up first.
- The value of the <u>ATP/CTP horizon</u> of alternative materials must be greater than the alternative material horizon. Beyond the ATP/CTP horizon, LN assumes that the material is unlimited available.

Planning with alternative materials

The <u>order-based planning</u> process checks whether the <u>projected inventory</u> stays above the <u>safety stock</u> if you use the standard material to fulfill the material requirement for the planning cluster for which order planning is done.

If the projected inventory drops below the safety stock, LN searches for a <u>firm-planned order</u> that can be rescheduled to an earlier date to fill the requirement.

If LN finds no such order, LN checks the <u>available-to-promise (ATP)</u> quantity of the component's alternative materials (in priority order) across the whole planning cluster. If ATP finds an alternative material, the material requirement is shifted to that alternative material.

If the ATP is insufficient, LN will generate a new <u>planned order</u> for the standard material for the specified planning cluster.

If the material requirement cannot be fulfilled in time, LN generates a signal to notify the planner.

Alternative material horizon

For material requirements in a relatively far future, LN does not check for alternative materials.

To determine how far into the future LN checks for alternative materials, use the **Alternative Materials Horizon** field in the Scenarios (cprpd4100m000) session.

Allow multiple materials

If the **Allow Multiple Items** check box in the Job Shop List of Materials (tibom3610m000) session is selected for the specific item and site combination, LN can distribute the <u>estimated quantity</u> of the material over multiple items.

For example, the estimated quantity can be divided over the <u>use-up material</u> and the standard material or over the standard material and one or more <u>alternative materials</u>.

If you do not permit multiple items, LN makes a choice for each material line: LN issues either the standard material or the alternative material, but not a combination of two or more materials.

For examples, refer to Searching for alternative materials (p. 13).

Restrictions

The following restrictions apply:

- The selection of use-up materials and alternative materials is only available in <u>order-based</u> planning and not in master-based planning
- The materials must be available in the warehouses linked to sites which belong to the selected planning cluster.
- The capable-to-promise checks do not take alternative materials into account.

Phase numbers

From all items that have the same <u>phase number</u>, LN first plans the items that can be used as an alternative material, to determine the <u>ATP</u> of these items.

The phase number of a BOM component must equal the phase number of the component's alternative materials. If these phase numbers happen to be different, LN first tries to adjust the phase numbers to solve that problem. If the BOMs and alternative-material definition contains a cycle, a change of phase number cannot solve the problem and LN will display an error message.

If LN shows the **Alternatives Cycle detected.** error message, use the Remove Used Up Materials from Alternative Materials (tibom0252m000) session to remove the alternative material that causes the problem.

Example

The following situation is an example of an alternative cycle:

- Item A has phase number 0.
- B is a material in the BOM of A (B has phase number 1)
- C is a material in the BOM of B (C has phase number 2)
- A is an alternative for material C. (A must have the same phase number as C, but A has phase number 0)

Many other combinations can result in an alternative cycle.

Checks on the execution level

You can repeat the check later, after you transferred the orders to the <u>execution level</u>. In that case, LN will recheck the inventory levels and change the selection of materials if necessary.

Appendix A Glossary



alternative items

Items that can serve as a substitute for the standard item if the standard item cannot be delivered or is being replaced.

alternative material

A substitute for a BOM material that the system can select in case the standard material is out of stock.

An alternative material is supposed to meet the same specifications, but only in the context of a BOM for a specific main item.

ATP

See: available-to-promise (p. 22)

ATP

See: available-to-promise (p. 22)

ATP/CTP horizon

The date until which LN performs ATP and CTP checks.

The ATP horizon is expressed as a number of working days during which LN can carry out ATP and CTP checks. Beyond the ATP/CTP horizon, LN does not check ATP or CTP: all customer orders are accepted.

available-to-promise

The item quantity that is still available to be promised to a customer.

In LN, available-to-promise (ATP) is part of a larger extended framework of order promising techniques called <u>capable-to-promise</u> (CTP). If an item's ATP is insufficient, CTP goes beyond ATP in that it also considers the possibility of producing more than was initially planned.

In addition to the standard ATP functionality, LN also uses channel ATP. This term refers to the availability of an item for a certain sales channel, taking into account the sales limits for that channel.

For all other types of order promising functionality used in LN, the term CTP is used.

Acronym: ATP

Abbreviation: ATP

bill of material (BOM)

A list of all parts, raw materials, and subassemblies that go into a manufactured item and show the quantity of each of the parts required to make the item. The BOM shows the single-level product structure of a manufactured item.

BOM line

The line number within the bill of material.

BOM position number

A reference number identifying a specific combination of manufactured and component items in a bill of material. The position number is subdivided by sequence numbers that are used to refer to usage of a component between particular dates.

capable-to-promise

The combination of techniques used to determine the quantity of an item that you can promise to a customer on a specific date.

Capable-to-promise (CTP) involves an extension of the standard available-to-promise (ATP) functionality. CTP goes beyond ATP in that it also considers the possibility of producing more than was initially planned, when an item's ATP is insufficient.

In addition to the standard ATP functionality, CTP comprises the following techniques:

- Channel ATP: restricted availability for a certain sales channel.
- Product family CTP: order promising on the basis of availability on product family level rather than on item level.
- Component CTP: check if there are enough components available to produce an extra quantity of an item.
- Capacity CTP: check if there is enough capacity available to produce an extra quantity of an item.

Abbreviation: CTP

CTP

See: capable-to-promise (p. 23)

end item

An item that is ready to be delivered to a warehouse. An end item is produced at the end of a dangle routing (co-products and by-products) or a main routing.

estimated quantity

The quantity of an item that is planned for use in a particular production order.

The estimated quantity is made up of the net quantity plus any additional quantities used to compensate for anticipated material losses.

exception message

A short standardized message that LN generates to advise the user to change or correct a specific planning parameter, value, or constraint to avoid undesired results or conflicts in planning.

execution level

Within Enterprise Planning, the designation of the LN packages that control the execution of orders and the actual goods flow, such as:

- Manufacturing
- Order Management
- Warehousing

Enterprise Planning uses planning algorithms to carry out simulations and optimizations. The other packages control the execution of orders, and the goods flow.

firm-planned order

A planned order that can no longer be modified by Enterprise Planning in an order-planning run. However, you can manually change a firm-planned order's start date and finish date, or the order quantity.

inventory on hand

The physical quantity of goods in one or more warehouses (including the inventory on hold).

Synonym: on-hand inventory

item

The raw materials, subassemblies, finished products, and tools that can be purchased, stored, manufactured, and sold.

An item can also represent a set of items handled as one kit, or which exist in multiple product variants.

You can also define nonphysical items, which are not retained in inventory but can be used to post costs or to invoice services to customers. The examples of nonphysical items:

- Cost items (for example, electricity)
- Service items
- Subcontracting services
- List items (menus/options)

lot

A number of items produced and stored together that are identified by a (lot) code. Lots identify goods.

master-based planning

A planning concept in which all planning data is accumulated into time buckets with predefined lengths.

In master planning, all demand, supply, and inventory data is handled in terms of these time buckets, and is stored in master plans.

In master planning, supply is planned in the form of a supply plan. This supply plan is calculated on the basis of demand forecasts, actual orders, and other information. For production planning, this planning method only considers critical requirements, as recorded in an item's bill of critical materials and bill of critical capacities.

Note

In Enterprise Planning, you can maintain a master plan for an item, even if you plan all supply with order planning.

multisite

Refers to the management of multiple sites within a single (logistic) company.

In a multicompany structure, which includes several companies, multisite applies to each of the logistic companies.

net quantity

The quantity of a component or material that is theoretically required to manufacture a certain quantity of a product.

This quantity is referred to as the net quantity because in practice you may require more than this quantity to make up for certain losses of material or product during the production process.

on-hand inventory

See: inventory on hand (p. 24)

order-based planning

A planning concept in which planning data is handled in the form of orders.

In order planning, supply is planned in the form of planned orders. LN takes into account the start and finish dates of individual planned orders. For production planning, this method considers all material and capacity requirements, as recorded in an item's BOM and routing.

Note

In Enterprise Planning, you can maintain a master plan for an item, even if you plan all supply with order planning.

outbound advice

A list generated by LN that advises you the location and lot from which goods must be picked and possibly issued, taking into account factors such as blocked locations and the outbound method.

phantom

An assembly that is produced as part of a manufactured item, and that can have its own routing.

A phantom is usually not held in inventory, although occasionally some inventory can exist. The planning system does not create material requirements for a phantom, but drives the requirements straight through the phantom item to its components. Phantoms are mainly defined to create a modular product structure.

Example

The door of a refrigerator is defined as a phantom item in the bill of material of a refrigerator. The materials of the door are listed on the production order's material list for the refrigerator.

phase number

A number that determines the order in which plan units and plan items are planned.

As a rule, plan units and plan items are planned in order of increasing phase number: first phase number 0, then phase number 1, and so on.

An item has separate phase numbers for master planning and order planning. For items that belong to a plan unit, the master phase-number equals the plan unit's master phase-number.

planned order

A supply order in Enterprise Planning that is created for planning purposes, but which is not an actual order yet.

Enterprise Planning works with planned orders of the following types:

- planned production order
- planned purchase order
- planned distribution order

Planned orders are generated in the context of a particular scenario. The planned orders of the actual scenario can be transferred to the execution level, where they become actual supply orders.

planned production order

A planned order in Enterprise Planning to produce a certain quantity of an item.

planning cluster

An object used to group warehouses for which the inbound and outbound flow of goods and materials is planned collectively. For this purpose, the demand and supply of the warehouses of the planning cluster is aggregated. Within a planning cluster one supply source is used, such as production, purchasing or distribution.

If <u>multisite</u> is implemented, a planning cluster must include one or more <u>sites</u>. The site or sites include the warehouses for which the planning processes are performed. A site is linked to one planning cluster.

production order

An order to produce a specified quantity of an item on a specified delivery date.

projected inventory

The expected inventory level at the end of a plan period.

Note that the projected inventory of plan periods that are entirely in the past equals the inventory on hand.

project item

An item that is produced or purchased for a particular sales order. The item's project provides a link with the sales order.

A project item can be recognized by its item code. If a code has been entered in the project segment, the item is a project item.

A project item can be customized to the specifications of a customer, but it can also be a standard-to-order item.

purchase order

An agreement that indicates which items are delivered by a buy-from business partner according to certain terms and conditions.

A purchase order contains:

- A header with general order data, buy-from business partner data, payment terms, and delivery terms
- One or more order lines with more detailed information about the actual items to be delivered

revision

A version or revised version of an engineering item (E-item) or a revision-controlled item, that is, an item linked to an E-item. Several revisions of an E-item can exist.

Example

E-item: Mountain bike E-MB01

Revision	Description	Status
A1	Draft drawing of bike	Not released
A2	Drawing of bike	Not released
A3	Parent E-item of bike MB01	Released
A4	Obsolete bike	Canceled

safety stock

The buffer inventory necessary to meet fluctuations in demand and delivery lead time. In general, safety stock is a quantity of inventory planned to be in inventory to protect against fluctuations in demand or supply. In the context of master production scheduling, safety stock is the additional inventory and capacity planned as protection against forecast errors and short-term changes in the backlog.

scrap

Unusable material or rejects of intermediate products, for example, because of faulty components, or products lost in cutting or sawing operations. The gross material requirements and/or an operation's input quantity must be increased to account for anticipated scrap.

In the BOM, you can define scrap as a percentage of the net material requirements, which is the scrap factor, and as a fixed quantity, which is the scrap quantity. A scrap quantity is mostly used to define the amount of material that is lost every time when you start producing, for example, to test the equipment.

For an operation, you can only define the scrap as a fixed quantity.

segmentation

A subdivision of the item code in different logical parts, called segments.

These segments are visible in the sessions as separate fields. Examples of segments are:

- Project segment
- Cluster segment
- Item identification

shop floor planner

The person responsible for printing, (re)scheduling and releasing production orders and managing workloads.

site

A business location of an enterprise that can maintain its own logistical data. It includes a collection of warehouses, departments and assembly lines at the same location. Sites are used to model the supply chain in a <u>multisite</u> environment.

These restrictions apply to sites:

- A site cannot cross countries. The warehouses and departments of the site must be in the same country as the site.
- A site is linked to one planning cluster. Consequently, all warehouses and work centers of a site must belong to the same planning cluster.
- A site is linked to one logistic company.

You can link a site to an enterprise unit or an enterprise unit to a site.

If an enterprise unit is linked to a site, the entities of the site belong to the enterprise unit. Conversely, if a site is linked to an enterprise unit, the entities of the enterprise unit belong to the site.

use-up material

A material that has been replaced by another item in all BOMs.

After the use-up material's last allowed order date elapses, any remaining stock is used up; then, the replacement material will be used.

yield

The usable output from a operation expressed as a percentage of its input.

Example 1: An operation in the production process for light bulbs has a yield of 98%. So, out of every 100 light bulbs produced, 98 are good on average. The remaining light bulbs are faulty, and will therefore be rejected.

Example 2: Steel wires are twisted together to produce a steel cable. Due to the twisting, the cable is 10% shorter than the wires from which it is produced. So, the yield is set to 90%.

Index

alternative items, 21	outbound advice, 26
alternative material, 21	phantom, 26
Alternative material	phase number, 26
alternative materials, 17	planned order, 26
customized item, 7	planned production order, 26
Alternative materials	planning cluster, 27
jsbom, 7	production order, 27
Use-up, 13	projected inventory, 27
ATP , 22	project item, 27
ATP/CTP horizon, 21	purchase order, 27
available-to-promise, 22	Replacing
bill of material (BOM), 22	replacing, 11
BOM	revision, 28
alternative material, 13	safety stock, 28
BOM line, 22	scrap, 28
BOM position number, 22	segmentation, 28
capable-to-promise, 23	shop floor planner, 29
Checking	site , 29
use-up material definitions, 15	use-up
CTP , 23	bill of material, 13
Customized item	use up
alternative material, 7	Material, 11
use-up material, 7	Use up
end item, 23	material, 11
estimated quantity, 23	planning, 17
exception message, 23	use-up material, 29
execution level, 24	Use-up material
firm-planned order, 24	customized item, 7
inventory on hand, 24	Planning, 17
item, 24	Use-up Material Definitions
JSBOM	checking, 15
alternative material, 7	Use-up Material
lot, 24	use-up material, 9, 11
master-based planning, 25	Use Up
multisite, 25	use up, 9
net quantity, 25	yield, 29
on-hand inventory, 24	
order-based planning, 25	